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To be a dynamic, profitable and growth oriented Company.

The mission of the Company is to prudently utilize the human resources and plant and machinery 
in order to achieve high levels of sustainable profitability and growth by:

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

Offering high  class products and services to all our customers.

Building a long term relationship with our customers, suppliers and other stake holders.

Continuously upgrading the latest production facilities to achieve higher  levels of 
operational efficiency and develop potential as well as performance.

Nurturing a work  culture that generates creativity, enthusiasm, professionalism and 
teamwork.

Maintaining the highest standards of ethics, safety and environment.

Contributing towards the economic development of the country.

Being a good corporate citizen by fulfilling our social responsibilities.

NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 

Vision Statement 
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2022 2021
ASSETS Note

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 3,437,590,070   2,942,055,457      

Long term deposits 6 21,119,188        13,608,488          

3,458,709,258   2,955,663,945      

Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 7 148,838,619      117,843,997        

Stock-in-trade 8 1,875,031,314   1,041,106,025      

Trade debts 9 2,641,925,967   1,678,765,237      

Investments 10 112,113,452      82,439,482          

Loans, advances and prepayments 11 118,404,750      115,475,536        

Other receivables 12 39,831,004        23,297,016          

Tax refunds due from government 13 42,437,110        25,744,511          

Cash and bank balances 14 173,991,392      141,856,960        

5,152,573,608   3,226,528,764

8,611,282,866   6,182,192,709      

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorized capital
25,000,000 ordinary (2021: 25,000,000) shares of Rs. 10/- each       250,000,000 250,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 15 215,119,850      215,119,850

Revenue reserve
Unappropriated profits 2,359,779,547   1,184,734,861

Capital reserves
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment - net of deferred tax 16 1,278,283,722   1,305,611,412

Share premium 274,197,289      274,197,289

1,552,481,011   1,579,808,701

4,127,380,408   2,979,663,412
Non-current liabilities
Long term financing 17 366,765,949      288,508,595        

Deferred liabilities 18 148,627,376      149,930,739        

Loan from related parties 19 404,205,204      377,650,204        

Deferred income - Government grant 20 1,638,146          5,332,154            

921,236,675      821,421,692        
Current liabilities
Loans from directors 21 10,000,000        60,700,000          

Trade and other payables 22 1,443,401,894   816,957,298        

Accrued mark-up 23 64,077,060        32,194,556          

Short term borrowings - secured 24 1,866,383,279   1,284,020,194      

Unclaimed dividend 1,491,024          1,485,472            

Current portion of long term financing 17 122,212,526      112,750,085        

Current portion of loan from related parties 19 55,100,000        73,000,000          

3,562,665,783   2,381,107,605      
Contingencies and commitments 25 -                    -                        

8,611,282,866   6,182,192,709      

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

---------- Rupees ----------

NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022
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Dated: October 06, 2022

Zahid Mazhar
Chief Executive Officer

Omer Bin Zahid
Chief Financial Officer

Omer Bin Zahid
Director



2022 2021

Note

Sales - net 26 13,775,867,794   9,494,360,590      

Cost of sales 27 (11,457,286,298)  (8,166,931,512)     

Gross profit 2,318,581,496     1,327,429,078      

Administrative expenses 28 (143,210,520)       (120,358,679)       

Distribution costs 29 (228,469,086)       (142,817,246)       

(371,679,606)       (263,175,925)       

1,946,901,890     1,064,253,153      

Other operating income 30 16,616,924          26,439,125          

Other operating expenses 31 (125,195,211)       (67,089,280)         

Finance costs 32 (453,392,653)       (265,428,009)       

(561,970,940)       (306,078,164)       

Profit before taxation 1,384,930,950     758,174,989        

Taxation 33 (170,946,809)       (119,306,166)       

Profit after taxation 1,213,984,141     638,868,823        

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 34 56.43                   30.78                  

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

---------- Rupees ----------
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Director

2022 2021

Profit after taxation 1,213,984,141   638,868,823        

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified in profit or loss: effect of surplus of revaluation in PPE
effect of deferred tax as separate line item

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation        (13,314,381)             2,041,491 

Deferred tax on remeasurement on defined benefit obligation           1,013,943              (308,034)

       (12,300,438)             1,733,457 

Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land, factory building,

and office premises                        -         1,051,039,365 

Increase in fair value of a non-factory building 

disposed of during the year         11,440,487                        -   

Deferred tax charge on above             (871,239)          (32,711,809)

        10,569,248       1,018,327,556 

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,212,252,951   1,658,929,836      

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

---------- Rupees ----------

NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022



2022 2021

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net cash generated from operations 35 536,134,278        1,278,252,368        

Long term deposits placed (7,510,700)           -                       

Income tax paid (175,276,101)       (117,718,257)         

Gratuity paid 18.1.1 (33,399,437)         (22,616,394)           

Markup paid (249,410,649)       (215,956,790)         

Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid 22.5 (47,496,651)         (26,188,169)           

Workers' Welfare Fund paid 22.6 (15,919,735)         (2,155,964)             

Net cash generated from operating activities 7,121,005            893,616,794           

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property, plant and equipment (570,228,436)       (292,992,761)         

Short term investments obtained (135,018,465)       (22,468,092)           WDV on disposals (excluding non-factory building)

Proceeds realized from disposal of short term investments 105,344,495        -                       Loss on disposal

Profit received on saving accounts and TDRs 12,613,221          12,916,127            

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 5.1.5 55,215,251          10,836,225            Proceeds from disposal of non-factory building

Net cash used in investing activities (532,073,934)       (291,708,501)         

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term finance (repaid) / obtained - net 81,299,679          83,929,875            

Loan (repaid) / obtained from director (50,700,000)         24,000,000            

Loan from related parties-net 8,655,000            17,795,000            

Dividend paid (64,530,403)         -                       

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (25,275,724)         125,724,875           

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (550,228,653)       727,633,168           

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (1,142,163,234)    (1,869,796,402)       

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36 (1,692,391,887)    (1,142,163,234)       

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

---------- Rupees ----------

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

26

Karachi:
Dated: October 06, 2022

Zahid Mazhar
Chief Executive Officer

Omer Bin Zahid
Chief Financial Officer

Omer Bin Zahid
Director



Revenue reserve

Balance as at July 01, 2020 192,119,850    119,600,000     530,976,171            177,597,289     300,440,266           1,320,733,576     

Total comprehensive income for the
year ended June 30, 2021

-  Profit after taxation -                 -                 638,868,823            -                  -                        638,868,823       

-  Other comprehensive income -                 -                 1,733,457               -                  1,018,327,556         1,020,061,013     

-                 -                 640,602,280            -                  1,018,327,556         1,658,929,836     

Transfer to unappropriated profit on 

    account of incremental depreciation - 

    net of deferred tax                    -                      -   13,156,410                                 -   (13,156,410)            -                    

Transactions with owners
Advance received against issue of shares 23,000,000      (119,600,000)    -                        96,600,000       -                        -                    

Balance as at June 30, 2021 215,119,850    -                 1,184,734,861         274,197,289     1,305,611,412         2,979,663,412     

Total comprehensive income for the
year ended June 30, 2022

-  Profit after taxation -                -                 1,213,984,141      -                 -                       1,213,984,141 
-  Other comprehensive income -                -                 (12,300,438)          -                 10,569,248           (1,731,190)       

-                -                 1,201,683,703      -                 10,569,248           1,212,252,951 

Surplus on revaluation of a non-factory building 

realized upon disposal - net of deferred tax -                    -                     17,864,670           -                     (17,864,670)         -                       

Transfer to unappropriated profit on 

    account of incremental depreciation - 

    net of deferred tax -                    -                     20,032,268           -                     (20,032,268)         -                       
                     -                      -            37,896,938                       -           (37,896,938)                         - 

Transactions with owners
Final dividend @ 30% for the year 

ended June 30, 2021 -                -                 (64,535,955)          -                 -                       (64,535,955)     

Balance as at June 30, 2022 215,119,850 -                 2,359,779,547      274,197,289   1,278,283,722      4,127,380,408 

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revaluation 
surplus on 

property, plant 
and equipment - 

net of deferred tax

Total

-------------------------------------------  Rupees  -------------------------------------------

Capital reserves

Issued, 
subscribed 
and paid up 

capital 

Advance 
against issue 

of shares

Unappropriated 
profits

Share 
premium
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1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 Legal status of the Company

1.2 Location of the registered office and the manufacturing facilities
Registered office: 

Manufacturing facilities: 
The Company's manufacturing facilities are situated as follows:

- Unit-1: A-265, S.I.T.E., Nooriabad, district Jamshoro, Sindh.

- Unit-2: E-11, S.I.T.E., Kotri, district Jamshoro, Sindh

1.3 Principal business activity

The main business of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

- Provisions of, and directives issued under, the Companies Act, 2017.

2.2 Basis of measurement

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

Note

- Revaluation of certain items of property, plant and equipment 4.1

- Useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment 4.1

- Discount rate used to determine the  value of government grant element embedded

    in the  long te rm 'finance received from A commercial bank under the SBP refinance

    Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries

- Provision for staff retirement benefits 4.6

- Provision for taxation 4.8

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards requires management to make

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in 

the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant

to the Company's financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policy are as follows:

Nadeem Textile Mills Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in Pakistan on July 15, 1984 as a public limited company under

the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017) and its shares are

listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting and financial reporting standards

as applicable in Pakistan. Such standards comprise:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Where the provisions of, and directives issued under, the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the former

have been followed.

Items in these financial statements have been measured at their historical cost except for leasehold land, factory building and

office premises which are carried at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation therein.

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which

the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company� s functional and

presentation currency.

The registered office of the Company is situated at 801-804, Lakson Square Building No.3, Sarwar Shaheed Road, Karachi.

NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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3. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

3.1

3.2

-

-

-

-

-

a.

b.

c.

Amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations which became effective during the year ended June 30,
2022.

During the year, certain new accounting and reporting standards / amendments / interpretations became effective and

applicable to the Company. However, since such updates were not considered to be relevant to these financial statements, the 

same have not been reported.

New / revised accounting standards, amendments to published accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet
effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and

the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after the dates specified

below:

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) � the Board has issued

amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and to help companies provide

useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting

policies;

Onerous Contracts � Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that the 'cost of fulfilling a contract' for the purposes of the onerous contract

assessment comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract, including both the incremental costs and an

allocation of other direct costs to fulfil the contract. An entity is required to apply the amendments to contracts for

which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies

the amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead the

amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an

adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of

initial application. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and costs of items produced while bringing an item

of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the

manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable

Standards. The entity measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements of IAS 2. The

standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply

those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location

and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the

beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.

The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening

balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period

presented. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.

clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are

themselves material to a company� s financial statements.

clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are

themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the Conceptual Framework, issued in May 2020,

amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3. An entity shall

apply those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the

first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 01, 2022. Earlier application is permitted if at the same time

or earlier an entity also applies all the amendments made by Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework

in IFRS Standards, issued in March 2018. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the

Company.

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

amendments apply retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023. These amendments

in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends

the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity� s right at the end of

the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity

shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8. The management of the Company is

currently in the process of assessing the impacts of these amendments to these financial statements.
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-

-

-

-

-

-

-

The above amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

IFRS 16 � The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding the

illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to

resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives.

IAS 41 � The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation

cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique This

amendment enables the fair value measurement of biological assets on a post-tax basis. 

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12) � The

amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to transactions that

give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will need to recognise a deferred tax

asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and a

decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and

liabilities will need to be recognised from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any

cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date. The

amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023 with earlier application

permitted. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. The accounting 

policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and

IAS 28) � The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments

also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain

retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred

indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning

on or after January 01, 2022.

IFRS 9 � The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the

borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other� s

behalf, when it applies the � 10 per cent�  test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize 

a financial liability.

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, except lease hold land, factory building

and office premises which are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits

associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of

the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the

year in which they are incurred. 

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples on the

application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods

beginning on or after January 01, 2023 with earlier application permitted.

The management of the Company is currently in the process of assessing the impacts of above amendments to these

financial statements.

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) � The amendments introduce a new definition for

accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to

measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying

that a company develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The

amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023, and will apply prospectively to changes

in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual

reporting period in which the company applies the amendments. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial

statements of the Company.
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4.2 Stores, spares and loose tools

4.3 Stock in trade

Basis of valuation

All items of stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and their net realizable value as of the reporting date.

Determination of cost

Determination of net realizable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion

and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are

damaged, if they have become wholly or partially obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The cost of inventories may

also not be recoverable if the estimated costs of completion or the estimated costs to be incurred to make the sale have

increased.

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other than those

subsequently recoverable by the Company from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling and other costs directly

attributable to the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services. Trade discounts, rebates and other similar items are

deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The assets' residual values, useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end. The Company's

estimate of residual value of property and equipment at year end did not require any adjustment as its impact is considered

insignificant.

The cost of the items consumed or sold and those held in stock at the reporting date is determined using the average cost

formula.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of assets is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as a 

separate component of equity as � Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment� , except to the extent that it reverses

a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to

profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of

freehold land, factory building and office premises is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,

held in the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The

revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company� s shareholders. The surplus on revaluation to the extent

of incremental depreciation charged is transferred to unappropriated profit.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected

from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which the

asset is derecognized.

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying written down value method whereby the cost or revalued

amount of an asset is written off over its useful life at the rates specified in note 5.1 the financial statements. Depreciation on

additions is charged from the day in which asset is available for use and on disposals up to the day immediately preceding

that of disposal.

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the units of production, such as direct labour. They

also include a systematic allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are incurred in converting materials into

finished goods. The allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion is based on the normal capacity of

the production facilities (which is the production expected to be achieved on average over a number of periods or seasons

under normal circumstances, taking into account the loss of capacity resulting from planned maintenance). However, in

periods of abnormally high production, the amount of fixed overhead allocated to each unit of production is decreased so that

inventories are not measured above cost. Variable production overheads are allocated to each unit of production on the basis

of the actual use of the production facilities.

Capital work - in - progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditures connected to the

specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work - in - progress. These are

transferred to specified assets as and when assets are available for use.

These are valued at cost less the provision for slow-moving or obsolete items, if any, except for the items in transit which are

stated at cost (comprising invoice value and other directly attributable costs incurred thereon). The cost of the items

consumed and those held in stock at the reporting date is determined using average cost method.

Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving items based on the management's best estimate

regarding their future usability.

The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition. 
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4.4 Trade debts

4.5 Cash and cash equivalents

4.6 Staff retirement benefits

4.7 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions

The Company estimates the net realisable value of inventories based on the most reliable evidence available, at the reporting

date, of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or

cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the reporting period to the extent that such events confirm

conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents

comprise cash in hand, bank balances and short term borrowings from banks which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Company's cash management.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity regularly pays contributions into a separate

fund but will continue to have legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient

assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. As a consequence, actuarial

risk (that benefits will be less than expected) and investment risk (that assets will be insufficient to meet expected benefits)

fall, in substance, on the entity. 

Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished

product in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when a decline in the price of

materials indicates that the cost of the finished product exceeds net realisable value, the materials are written down to net

realisable value. In such circumstances, the replacement cost of the materials is used as the measure of their net realisable

value.

A new assessment is made of net realisable value in each subsequent period. When the circumstances that previously caused

inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value

because of changed economic circumstances, the amount of the write� down is reversed (i.e. the reversal is limited to the

amount of the original write� down) so that the new carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realisable

value.

These are carried at their transaction price less any allowance for lifetime expected credit losses. A receivable is recognized

when the goods are delivered to dealers as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the

passage of time is required before the payment is due.

The Company ope rates an unfunde d gratuity scheme for its employees which is classified as a defined benefit plan.

The Company� s obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that

employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount. The calculation of defined benefit

obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Remeasurements of the defined benefit liability (i.e. the actuarial gains or losses) are recognised immediately in other

comprehensive income. The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by

applying the discount rate to the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual reporting period, taking into account

any changes in the defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Interest

expense and other expenses related to the defined benefit plan are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service

or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the 

settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a

result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by

considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to

any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
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Contingent liabilities

4.8 Taxation

Current

Deferred

4.9 Revenue recognition

Revenue from local sales

Revenue from export sales

Other income

The taxexpense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Taxis recognized in the statement of profit or loss, except to

the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management� s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present

obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the

provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations,

technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are

reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously

recognised provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognised as part of

cost of an asset.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence

will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the

control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is

not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the

amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Revenue from sale of goods (yarn) is recegnized when the customer obtains control of the goods, being when the goods are

delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the selling price of the goods and there is no unfulfilled

obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when the goods have been dispatched

from the company premise, the risk of loss has been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the

goods in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have elapsed, or the Company has objective evidence

that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to

the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the

transaction prices for the time value of money.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to

the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the

transaction prices for the time value of money.

Return on bank deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal amount outstanding and at the rate

applicable.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses and credits only if it is probable 

that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and unused tax losses and credits.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred taxliabilities are not recognised if they

arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income taxis also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of

an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither

accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income taxasset

is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Revenue from sale of goods to foreign customers is recognized when those customers obtain control of the exported goods

which is when the goods are loaded onto the shipping vessel and, as an acknowledgement thereof, a bill of lading is issued

by the shipping company.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which

applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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4.10 Borrowing costs

4.11 Foreign currency transactions and translation

4.12 Financial assets

4.12.1 Classification and initial measurement

(a) financial assets measured at amortized cost;

(b) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

(c) fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost.

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

(c) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to 

collect contractual cash � ows, and its contractual terms give rise on speci� ed dates to cash � ows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through pr ofit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cos t or at fair 

value through othe r comprehens ive income, as aforesaid. However, for an investment in equity ins trument which is 

not he ld for trading, the Company may make an irrevocable election to pr esent in othe r comprehens ive income 

subs equent changes in the  fair value of the investment.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition or issue thereof.

The Company ceases capitalising borrowing costs when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying

asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

The Company recognizes a financial asset when and only when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument evidencing investment. The Company classifies its financial assets into either of following three categories:

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through othe r comprehens ive income when it is held within a bus iness 

model whos e objective is achieved by both c ollecting contractual cash � ows and s elling � nancial assets  and its

contractual terms give rise on speci� ed dates to cash � ows that are solely payments  of principal and interest on the

principal amount outs tanding.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition or issue thereof.

To the extent that the Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the

Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation by applying a capitalisation rate to the

expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to all borrowings

of the Company that are outstanding during the period. However, the Company excludes from this calculation borrowing

costs applicable to borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset until substantially all the

activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Rupees at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Rupees at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance

sheet date. All exchange differences arising on transaction are charged to profit and loss account in that period.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that

necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,

until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

To the extent that the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company

determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing

during the period.

The Company begins capitalising borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset on the 'commencement date' which

is the date when the Company first meets all of the following conditions: (a) it incurs expenditures for the asset; (b) it incurs

borrowing costs; and (c) it undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.

The Company suspends capitalisation of borrowing costs during extended periods in which it suspends active development

of a qualifying asset.
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4.12.2 Subsequent measurement

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI

These are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 

4.12.3 Impairment

4.12.4 De-recognition

4.13 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL). A financial

liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial

recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,

are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

For other financial assets, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'General Approach' to measuring expected credit losses whereby

the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if

the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. However, if, at the reporting

date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures

the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12� month expected credit losses.

The Company directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable

expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses arising from such financial assets

are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been

transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in accordance is

recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and

losses, until the financial asset is derecognised or reclassified. When the financial asset is derecognised the

cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss as a reclassification adjustment. Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in

profit or loss.

Net gains or losses arising from remeasurement of such financial assets as well as any interest income accruing

thereon are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. However, for an investment in equity instrument which is not

held for trading and for which the Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive

income subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment, such gains or losses are recognized in other

comprehensive income. Further, when such investment is disposed off, the cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised in other comprehensive income is not reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (determined using the effective interest method) less

accumulated impairment losses.

Loss allowances  for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'Simplified Approach'  to measuring expected credit losses which uses 

a lifetime expected loss allowance.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense

and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is

also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or have expired or when the

financial liability's cash flows have been substantially modified.

The Company measures expected credit losses on financial assets in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted

amount, time value of money and reasonable and supportable information at the reporting date about the past events, current

conditions and forecast of future economic conditions. The Company recognises in profit or loss, as an impairment loss, the

amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date.

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost.
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4.14 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

4.15 Dividends

2022 2021

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note 

Operating fixed assets 5.1          3,141,716,888             2,936,481,747 

Capital work in progress 5.2             136, 578,844                    5,573,710 

Machinery in transit             159,294,338                                 -   

         3,437,590,070             2,942,055,457 

5.1 Operating fixed assets

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle

either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle liability simultaneously.

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are

approved.

--------- Rupees ---------

As at June 30, 2020

Gross carrying amount 112,000,000       450,489,356      227,183,321      2,249,815,918          14,303,660   3,074,562     8,701,410      65,168,451      3,130,736,678      

Accumulated depreciation -                    (144,767,771)     (77,127,384)      (1,099,763,934)        (7,098,307)    (2,440,953)   (4,163,047)     (35,836,475)    (1,371,197,871)    

112,000,000       305,721,585      150,055,937      1,150,051,984          7,205,353     633,609       4,538,363      29,331,976      1,759,538,807      

Movement during the year 
ended June 30, 2021

Opening net book value 112,000,000       305,721,585      150,055,937      1,150,051,984          7,205,353     633,609       4,538,363      29,331,976      1,759,538,807      

Additions -                    2,550,352          37,700             73,279,594              454,000        184,270       360,959         28,484,945      105,351,820        

Transfer from CWIP -                    2,093,016          1,620,340         182,381,472            -              -              -               -                186,094,828        

Revaluation surplus 853,000,000       22,878,181        175,161,184      -                         -              -              -               -                1,051,039,365      

Disposals:

    -Cost -                    -                   -                  -                         -              -              -               (8,231,395)      (8,231,395)          

    -Accumulated depreciation -                    -                   -                  -                         -              -              -               3,409,448       3,409,448            

-                    -                   -                  -                         -              -              -               (4,821,947)      (4,821,947)          

Depreciation for the year -                    (15,652,270)       (9,710,506)        (127,180,038)           (743,253)      (213,704)      (474,691)       (6,746,664)      (160,721,126)       

Closing net book value 965,000,000       317,590,864      317,164,655      1,278,533,012          6,916,100     604,175       4,424,631      46,248,310      2,936,481,747      

Movement during the year 
ended June 30, 2021

Gross carrying amount 965,000,000       478,010,905      404,002,545      2,505,476,984          14,757,660   3,258,832     9,062,369      85,422,001      4,464,991,296      

Accumulated depreciation -                    (160,420,041)     (86,837,890)      (1,226,943,972)        (7,841,560)    (2,654,657)   (4,637,738)     (39,173,691)    (1,528,509,549)    

965,000,000       317,590,864      317,164,655      1,278,533,012          6,916,100     604,175       4,424,631      46,248,310      2,936,481,747      

Year ended June 30, 2022

Opening net book value 965,000,000    317,590,864    317,164,655   1,278,533,012      6,916,100   604,175     4,424,631    46,248,310   2,936,481,747  

Additions -                   8,688,740        -                  115,842,693         245,213      784,807     366,765       22,114,082   148,042,300     
Transfer from CWIP -                   5,254,715        300,000          285,626,287         -              -             -               -                291,181,002     
Increase in fair value of a -                   -                  -                  -                        -              -             -               -                -                    

non-factory building 11,440,487     11,440,487       

Disposals:

    -Cost -                   -                  (21,440,487)    (115,642,224)        -              -             -               (6,827,000)    (143,909,711)    
    -Accumulated depreciation -                   -                  1,973,487       82,396,667           -              -             -               2,995,935     87,366,089       

-                   -                  (19,467,000)    (33,245,557)          -              -             -               (3,831,065)    (56,543,622)      
Depreciation for the year -                   (16,120,513)    (15,687,521)    (143,482,019)        (708,739)     (278,596)    (457,076)      (12,150,562)  (188,885,026)    

Closing net book value 965,000,000    315,413,806    293,750,621   1,503,274,416      6,452,574   1,110,386  4,334,320    52,380,765   3,141,716,888  

As at June 30, 2022

Gross carrying amount 965,000,000    491,954,360    394,302,545   2,791,303,740      15,002,873 4,043,639  9,429,134    100,709,083 4,771,745,374  
Accumulated depreciation -                   (176,540,554)  (100,551,924)  (1,288,029,324)     (8,550,299)  (2,933,253) (5,094,814)   (48,328,318)  (1,630,028,486) 

965,000,000    315,413,806    293,750,621   1,503,274,416      6,452,574   1,110,386  4,334,320    52,380,765   3,141,716,888  

Annual rates of depreciation 0% 5% 5% 10% 10% 30% 10% 20%

 Factory 
building 

 Non factory 
building 

 Plant and 
machinery 

 Office 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment 

 Furniture 
and fixtures 

 Vehicles Total

------------------------------------------------------------  Rupees  ------------------------------------------------------------

 Leasehold land 
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2022 2021

Note 

5.1.6 Depreciation charge for the year is allocated as under:

Cost of goods manufactured - conversion costs incurred 27.1.2 159,602,532            142,832,308               

Administrative expenses 28 29,282,494              17,888,818                 

188,885,026            160,721,126               

---------- Rupees ----------

Plant and 
Machinery

Civil Works Total

Movement during the year ended June 30, 2021
Opening balance             101,742      2,800,551          2,902,293 

Additions during the year       182,449,131      5,191,810      187,640,941 

      182,550,873      7,992,361      190,543,234 

Transfer to operating fixed asset (182,381,472)        (2,588,052)     (184,969,524)

Balance as at June 30,2021             169,401      5,404,309          5,573,710 

Movement during the year ended June 30, 2022
Opening balance           169,401    5,404,309        5,573,710 
Additions during the year 420,063,227  2,122,909  422,186,136  

   420,232,628    7 ,527,218    427,759,846 
Transfer to operating fixed asset  (285,626,287)  (5,554,715)  (291,181,002)
Balance as at June 30,2022    134,606,341    1,972,503    136,578,844 

 ---------- Rupees ----------

6. LONG TERM DEPOSITS Note 

Long term advances 437,500                    437,500                      

Long term security deposits 6.1 20,681,688              13,170,988                 

21,119,188              13,608,488                 

6.1 This includes security deposit to WAPDA amounting to Rs. 17.4 million (2021: Rs.10.2 million).

2022 2021

7. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS Note 

Stores in hand 69,443,111              66,706,371                 

Spares in hand 80,852,733              55,209,620                 

Spares in transit 4,653,759                -                             

85,506,492              55,209,620                 

Loose tools 779,321                    568,010                      

155,728,924            122,484,001               

Less: Provision against slow moving store items (6,890,305)               (4,640,004)                 

148,838,619            117,843,997               

8. STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material in hand 620,289,804            373,846,564               

Raw material in transit 506,313,149            185,275,782               

1,126,602,953        559,122,346               

Work- in- process 115,178,451            61,074,545                 

Finished goods 612,505,201            372,638,511               

Waste 20,744,709              48,270,623                 

8.1 1,875,031,314        1,041,106,025            

8.1 This includes stocks amounting to Rs. 873 million (2021: Rs. 644 million) pledged with banks as security with banks against

finance facilities.

--------- Rupees ---------

--------- Rupees ---------
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2022 2021

9. TRADE DEBTS Note 

Local trade debts - unsecured 1,356,443,430        1,061,397,867            

Indirect export debts - unsecured 1,302,403,377        625,464,582               

2,658,846,807        1,686,862,449            

Less: Provision for expected credit losses 9.1 (16,920,840)             (8,097,212)                 

2,641,925,967        1,678,765,237            

9.1 The movement in the allowance for the doubtful debts is as follows:

Opening balance 8,097,212                5,661,711                   

Reversal during the year (1,256,949)               (2,200,000)                 

Charge during the year 10,993,220              4,635,501                   

Write offs (912,643)                  -                             

Closing balance 16,920,840              8,097,212                   

10. INVESTMENTS
Term deposits 10.1 112,113,452            82,439,482                 

10.1

2022 2021

11. LOANS, ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS Note 

Loans to staff and workers 11.1 1,202,664                848,679                      

Advance to suppliers 116,429,932            114,017,064               

Prepayments 43.1 772,154                    609,793                      

118,404,750            115,475,536               

11.1

2022 2021

12. OTHER RECEIVABLES Note 

Insurance claim receivable 16,284,000              -                             

Interest income receivable 6,017,491                3,280,737                   

Others 17,529,513              20,016,279                 

39,831,004              23,297,016                 

13. TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Income tax refundable 10,830,536              25,744,511                 

Sales tax refundable 31,606,574              -                             

42,437,110              25,744,511                 

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 4,848,557                11,885,581                 

Cash at bank - current accounts 38,371,801              33,421,434                 

Cash at bank - deposit accounts 14.1 130,771,034            96,549,945                 

169,142,835            129,971,379               

173,991,392            141,856,960               

14.1 These carry markup rate ranging from 5.75% to 8 .25% per annum on da ily produc t ba sis (2021: 5.5% to 7 .5% per annum).

--------- Rupees ---------

These TDRs were deposited as margin against bank guarantees issued by different banks as disclosed in note No.25.2. This

carries markup at a rate of 5.75% - 11.25% per annum (2021: 5.5% - 7.25%). These term deposits will mature between 6 to 36

months.

These represent interest-free loan provided to employees in accordance with the Company� s policy. The loans are secured

against retirement benefits and are recoverable in equal monthly installments.

--------- Rupees ---------

--------- Rupees ---------
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15. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

15.1

15.2

16. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -net

The associated company Nadeem Power Generation (Private) Limited held 3,604,500 (2021: 3,604,500) ordinary shares at the

year end.

There are no agreements among shareholders for voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal and block voting.

2022 2021 2022 2021

15,011,985 15,011,985      150,119,850 150,119,850     

6,500,000   6,500,000        65,000,000   65,000,000       

21,511,985 21,511,985      215,119,850 215,119,850     

----- Number of shares ----- ---------- Rupees ----------

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

issued as fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

issued as fully paid as bonus

shares

2022 2021

On leasehold land
Gross surplus

Opening balance 918,615,960      65,615,960          

Revaluation increase recognised during the year -                        853,000,000        

918,615,960      918,615,960        

On factory and non-factory building
Gross surplus

Opening balance 444,671,165      262,126,098        

Revaluation increase recognised during the year 11,440,487        198,039,365        

Surplus realized on disposal during the year (19,337,281)      
Incremental depreciation transferred to retained earnings (21,683,559)      (15,494,298)         

415,090,812      444,671,165        

Related deferred tax charge

Opening balance (57,675,713)      (27,301,792)         

Revaluation increase recognised during the year (871,239)           (32,711,809)         

Surplus realized on disposal during the year 1,472,611          -                        

Incremental depreciation transferred to retained earnings 1,651,291          2,337,888            

(55,423,050)      (57,675,713)         

359,667,762      386,995,452        

Surplus on revaluation - net of deferred tax 1,278,283,722   1,305,611,412      

---------- Rupees ----------
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2022 2021

17. LONG TERM FINANCING Note
Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF)
- Bank Al Falah Limited 17.1 133,268,000      158,274,040        

- Habib Bank Limited 17.2 130,000,000      -                        

- JS Bank Limited 17.3 95,850,500        130,047,500        

359,118,500      288,321,540        

Medium Term Loans
- Askari Bank Limited 17.4 71,789,200        -                        

- Bank Al Falah Limited 17.5 12,503,020        -                        

- Samba Bank Limited -                        9,375,000            

84,292,220        9,375,000            

SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of 
Salaries and Wages

- Soneri Bank Limited 17.6 45,567,755        103,562,140        

488,978,475      401,258,680        

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (122,212,526)    (112,750,085)       

Non-current maturity 366,765,949      288,508,595        

17.1 Long Term Financing Facility from Bank Al Falah Limited

(a)

(b)

(c)

17.2 Long Term Financing Facility from Habib Bank Limited

(a)

(b)

(c)

17.3 Long Term Financing Facility from JS Bank Limited

The loan is to be repaid in 16 equal semi-annually instalments (to be commenced after the aforesaid grace

period).

This represents amount availed for purchase of new plant and machinery (Spinning system, carding machine and

bale plucker ). It is secured by exclusive hypothecation charge over specific plant and machinery for Rs. 130

million with 25% margin over the plant and machinery amounting to Rs. 44 million.

This represents the amount availed under LTFF obtained for procurement of machinery in relation to the BMR of

existing plant and machinery of the Company. It is secured by first exclusive and specific charge over the

machinery being imported under the letter of credit (to be located at the Company's manufacturing facilities in

Nooriabad and Kotri, District Jamshoro, Sindh with 20% margin) with the tenor of 5 years at the mark-up rate of

5% to be repaid in 20 equal quarterly installments.

The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows: 

This represents amount availed for purchase of 2 MTU gas generators. It is secured by having the exclusive

charge over the imported machinery along with the 25% margin and ranking charge of Rs. 25 million over the

existing plant and machinery located Nooriabad unit, District Jamshoro, Sindh.

The applicable markup rate is 4.5%;

---------- Rupees ----------

The tenor of the facility is 8 years (including 1-year grace period commencing from the date of first

disbursement); and

The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows: 

The applicable markup rate is 4.5%;

The tenor of the facility is 7 years (including 1-year grace period commencing from the date of first

disbursement); and

The loan is to be repaid in 24 equal quarterly instalments (to be commenced after the aforesaid grace

period).
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17.4 Medium Term Loan from Askari Bank Limited

(a)

(b)

(c)

17.5 Medium Term Loan from Bank Al Falah Limited

(a)

(b)

(c)

2022 2021

17.6 SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Salaries and Wages

Opening carrying amount - net of deferred grant 103,562,140      75,930,409          

Funds borrowed during the year:

Loan proceeds received from the bank -                        40,953,886          

Less:  Element of government grant recognized as deferred income -                        (4,036,138)           

-                        36,917,748          

Interest recognized on unwinding of the liability 6,420,116          8,996,234            

Loan installments paid during the year (64,414,501)      (18,282,251)         

Closing carrying amount - net of deferred grant 45,567,755        103,562,140        

Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities (45,567,755)      (56,675,069)         

Non-current maturity -                        46,887,071          

2022 2021

Note 
18. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Staff retirement benefits - defined benefit plan (gratuity) 18.1 96,599,184        78,516,576          

Deferred taxation - net 18.2 52,028,192        71,414,163          

148,627,376      149,930,739        

18.1 Staff retirement benefits - defined benefit plan (gratuity)

The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows: 

The loan is to be repaid in 12 equal semi-annually instalments (to be commenced after the aforesaid grace

period).

---------- Rupees ----------

As disclosed in note 4.6 to these financial statements, the Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its

staff employees. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2022, using the Projected Unit Credit

Method.

The applicable markup rate is 6-Month KIBOR + 2%;

The tenor of the facility is 7 years (including 1-year grace period commencing from the date of first

disbursement); and

This represents the amount availed under a term finance facility (will be converted in SBP-LTFF) obtained from

M/s. Askari Bank Limited. The facility has been obtained for procurement of machinery in relation to the BMR of

existing plant and machinery of the Company, and is secured by first exclusive and specific charge over the

machinery being imported under the letter of credit (to be located at the Company's manufacturing facilities in

Nooriabad and Kotri, District Jamshoro, Sindh with 25% margin).

The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows: 

The applicable markup rate is 3-Month KIBOR + 2.25%;

The tenor of the facility is 7 years (including 2-year grace period commencing from the date of first

disbursement); and

---------- Rupees ----------

This represents the amount availed for purchase of 5x Maurata 21C Auto Winder. It is secured by having the

exclusive charge on machinery along with margin of 18% which will be covered through cushion of Rs. 15 million

in existing 1st Pari Passu charge over current assets of Rs. 75 million. 

The loan is to be repaid in 20 equal quarterly instalments (to be commenced after the aforesaid grace

period).
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18.1.1 Movement in defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 78,557,736        69,412,384          

Current service cost 31,940,705        28,864,381          

Interest cost 6,185,802          4,938,856            

Benefits paid (33,399,437)      (22,616,394)         

Remeasurements 13,314,378        (2,041,491)           

Closing defined benefit obligation 96,599,184        78,557,736          

18.1.2 Expenses recognized in the statement of profit or loss account
Current service cost 31,940,705        28,864,381          

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 6,185,802          4,938,856            

38,126,507        33,803,237          

18.1.3 Remeasurement losses / (gains) recognised in other 
comprehensive income

Actuarial losses / (gains) on defined benefit obligation due to:
- Changes in financial assumptions (3,659,128)        1,493,103            

- Experience adjustments 16,973,509        (3,534,594)           

13,314,381        (2,041,491)           

18.1.4 Year-end sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation

Discount rate + 100 bps 92,525,839        75,057,632          

Discount rate - 100 bps 101,166,855      82,492,322          

Salary increment rate + 100 bps 101,246,877      82,530,658          

Salary increment rate -100 bps 92,387,959        74,965,109          

18.1.5 As of June 30, 2022 the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 4 Years (2021: 5 years).

18.1.6 Principal actuarial  assumptions used in the valuation of gratuity 2022 2021

Discount rate used for interest cost in profit and loss 10.00% 8.50%

Discount rate used for year end obligation 13.25% 10.00%

Expected rate of increase in salary level (per annum) N/A 8.00%

Mortality rates SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

18.2 Deferred taxation - net

---------- Rupees ----------

Opening balance

Charge / 
(reversal) 

recognized in  
profit or loss

Charge / 
(income) 

recognized in 
other 

comprehensive 
income

Closing balance

For the year ended June 30, 2022 Note ------------------------------------------ Rupees ---------------------------------------
Taxable temporary differences
- Accelerated tax depreciation 101,531,341       (71,800,618)       -                     29,730,723           
- SBP loan for salaries and wages 724,662              (658,080)            -                     66,582                  
- Indirect export debtors -                     13,024,034        -                     13,024,034           
- Deferred grant (804,553)            679,802             -                     (124,751)               
- Excess of minimum tax carried forward 18.2.1 (72,817,562)       35,217,074        -                     (37,600,488)          

28,633,888         (23,537,788)       -                     5,096,100             
Deductible temporary differences
- Surplus on revaluaiton of fixed assets 57,675,713         -                     871,239             58,546,952           
- Provisions for expected credit losses (2,348,191)         (2,558,853)         -                     (4,907,044)            
- Provisions for slow moving store items (700,116)            1,348,714          -                     648,598                
- Staff retirement benefits (11,847,131)       5,504,660          (1,013,943)         (7,356,414)            

42,780,275         4,294,521          (142,704)            46,932,092           
71,414,163         (19,243,267)       (142,704)            52,028,192           
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Nadeem Textile Mills Limited

Opening balance

Charge / 
(reversal) 

recognized in  
profit or loss

Charge / 
(income) 

recognized in 
other 

comprehensive 
income

Closing balance

For the year ended June 30, 2021 -------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------
Taxable temporary differences
-Accelerated tax depreciation 97,402,277           4,129,064             -                     101,531,341            

- Deferred grant (1,022,036)            217,483               -                     (804,553)                 

- SBP loan for salaries and wages -                      724,662               -                     724,662                  

- Excess of minimum tax carried forward (76,947,918)          4,130,356             -                     (72,817,562)             

19,432,323           9,201,565             -                     28,633,888              

Deductible temporary differences
- Surplus on revaluaiton of fixed assets 27,301,792           (2,337,888)           32,711,809           57,675,713              

- Provisions for expected credit losses (1,641,896)            (706,295)              -                     (2,348,191)              

- Provisions for slow moving store items -                      (700,116)              -                     (700,116)                 

- Staff retirement benefits (9,700,450)            (2,454,715)           308,034               (11,847,131)             

15,959,446           (6,199,014)           33,019,843           42,780,275              

35,391,769           3,002,551             33,019,843           71,414,163              

18.2.1

2022 2021

Note 
19. LOAN FROM RELATED PARTIES

Nadeem Power Generation (Private) Limited (NPGL) 19.1 59,305,204        32,750,204          

Nadeem International (Private) Limited (NIPL) 19.2 400,000,000      417,900,000        

459,305,204      450,650,204        

Less : Current portion shown under current liabilities

Nadeem International (Private) Limited (55,100,000)      (73,000,000)         

19.3 404,205,204      377,650,204        

19.1 Nadeem Power Generation (Private) Limited (NPGL)

Opening 32,750,204        14,355,204          

Loan obtained 34,400,000        33,900,000          

Less: repaid (7,845,000)        (15,505,000)         

Closing 59,305,204        32,750,204          

19.2 Nadeem International (Private) Limited (NIPL)

Opening 417,900,000      418,500,000        

Loan obtained -                    13,500,000          

Less: repaid (17,900,000)      (14,100,000)         

Closing 400,000,000      417,900,000        

19.3

2022 2021

20. DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT GRANT

          5,332,154             6,802,278 

                       -               4,036,138 

         (3,694,008)            (5,506,262)

          1,638,146             5,332,154 

---------- Rupees ----------

Less: Amortized during the year

Deferred government grant recognized in respect of loans

This represents excess tax over and above the normal tax payable under provision of section 113 of income tax

ordinance 2001. The excess amount of tax paid can be carried forward and adjusted against tax liability for five

tax years immediately succeeding the tax year.

This represents loan provided by related parties NPGL and NIPL and respectively on renewable terms which may 

be extended for such period as may be mutually agreed by companies after expiry of the repayment period. These

loans are interest free and repayable within 13 months from July 01, 2022.

Opening balance

---------- Rupees ----------
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21. LOANS FROM DIRECTORS

Opening balance 60,700,000        36,700,000          

Loan received during the year -                        24,000,000          

60,700,000        60,700,000          

Loan repaid during the year (50,700,000)      -                        

Closing balance 10,000,000        60,700,000          

This represents director� s loans that is interest-free and repayable on-demand

2022 2021

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note 
Creditors

- local 393,924,862      287,267,832        

- foreign 22.1 589,636,858      118,956,010        

983,561,720      406,223,842        

Accrued expenses 22.2 194,481,627      216,269,176        

Provision for gas tariff difference 22.3 131,186,064      112,011,335        

Provision against Excise and Taxation charges 10,017,753        10,017,753          

Advances from customer 22.4 13,630,112        9,957,068            

Withholding income tax payable 43.1 2,231,730          1,000,577            

Withholding sales tax payable 43.1 221,449             229,097              

Worker's Profit Participation Fund payable 22.5 75,823,742        41,894,040          

Worker's Welfare Fund payable 22.6 32,247,697        19,354,410          

1,443,401,894   816,957,298        

22.1 This includes creditors for purchase of machinery amounting to Rs. 159.127 million (2021: Rs. Nil).

22.2

22.3

22.4

2022 2021

22.5 Worker's Profit Participation Fund payable Note 
Opening balance         41,894,040            25,626,426 

Provision for the year         75,823,742            41,894,040 

Interest charged during the year           5,602,611                561,743 

      123,320,393            68,082,209 

Payment during the year        (47,496,651)          (26,188,169)

        75,823,742            41,894,040 

22.6 Worker's Welfare Fund payable

Opening balance         19,354,410             5,590,639 

Provision for the year         28,813,022            15,919,735 

        48,167,432            21,510,374 

Payment during the year        (15,919,735)            (2,155,964)

        32,247,697            19,354,410 

This includes Rs. 24 million (2021: Rs. 28M) due to M/s. Nadeem Power Generation (Private) Limited, a related party, against electric bill.

During the year, the performance obligations underlying the opening contract liability of Rs. 9.95 million were satisfied in full. Accordingly,

the said liability was recorded as revenue during the year. 

Further, on October 23, 2020, OGRA issued S.R.O whereby, with effect from September 01, 2020, the sale price of natural gas for the

aforesaid class of gas consumers was increased to Rs. 819 per MMBTU (as against the previously applicable tariff of Rs. 786 per

MMBTU). The said notification was also widely challenged by companies operating in the textile industry (including the Company vide

Suit No. 1790 of 2020) before the Court. In its interim order dated May 25th, 2021 the Court held that, till further orders of the Court, the

plaintiffs (i.e. the gas consumers) shall continue to deposit their monthly bills at the rate of Rs. 786 per MMBTU and the differential

amount of Rs. 33 per MMBTU shall be secured by providing post-dated cheques to the Nazir of the Court. Accordingly, with effect from

September 2020, the Company has been recognizing a provision for the differential rate of Rs. 33 per MMBTU which, as at June 30, 2022, 

accumulated up to Rs. 39.304 million (2021: Rs. 20.130 million).

On August 31, 2015, the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) issued S.R.O. 876(I)/2015 whereby, with effect from September 01,

2015, the sale price of natural gas for gas consumers falling under the category 'Industrial' was increased to Rs. 600 per MMBTU (as

against the previously applicable tariff of Rs. 488.23 per MMBTU notified vide S.R.O. 01(I)/2013 dated January 01, 2013). The said

notification was widely challenged by companies operating in the textile industry (including the Company vide Suit No. 129 of 2017)

before the Honourable High Court of Sindh ('the Court'). In its interim order dated January 18, 2017, the Court held that, till further orders

of the Court, the plaintiffs (i.e. the gas consumers) shall continue to deposit their monthly bills at the rate of Rs. 488.23 per MMBTU and

the differential amount of Rs. 107.30 million per MMBTU shall be secured by providing post-dated cheques to the Nazir of the Court.

Accordingly, until September 2018, the Company continued to pay its monthly gas bills at the rate of Rs. 488.23 per MMBTU and

recognized a provision for the differential liability which, as at June 30, 2022, amounted to Rs. 91.881 million (2021: Rs. 91.881 million).

---------- Rupees ----------

---------- Rupees ----------

Information regarding the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations underlying the closing contract liability of Rs. 13.63 million is

not presented since the expected duration of all the contracts entered into with the customers is less than one year.
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2022 2021

23. ACCRUED MARK - UP Note 
Long term financing 6,589,076          3,586,140            

Short term borrowings 57,487,984        28,608,416          

64,077,060        32,194,556          

24. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured
Running Finance (RF)
- Samba Bank Limited 24.1 169,000,710      168,201,251        

- JS Bank Limited 24.2 98,082,108        97,053,140          

- Bank Al Falah Limited 24.3 43,967,260        44,970,362          

- Soneri Bank Limited 24.4 147,570,994      -                     

- Habib Metro Bank Limited 24.5 137,048,818      -                     

- Askari Bank Limited 24.6 49,221,516        49,583,698          

644,891,406      359,808,451        

Cash Finance (CF)
- JS Bank Limited 24.7 170,478,192      163,374,919        

- Bank Al Falah Limited 24.8 45,360,000        181,670,521        

- Soneri Bank Limited 24.9 363,702,400      43,496,429          

- Habib Metro Bank Limited -                    73,704,743          

- Askari Bank Limited 24.10 49,762,500        -                     

- Habib Bank Limited 24.11 116,481,983      80,000,000          

745,785,075      542,246,612        

Finance Against Imported Merchandise (FIM)
- JS Bank Limited -                    37,384,044          

- Bank Al Falah Limited 24.12 101,989,505      -                     

- Askari Bank Limited -                    22,352,173          

- Habib Bank Limited 24.13 72,217,293        121,979,414        

174,206,798      181,715,631        

Istisna Financing
- Dubai Islamic Bank Limited 24.14 301,500,000      -                     

Export Financing (FE-25)
- Soneri Bank Limited -                    200,249,500        

1,866,383,279   1,284,020,194      
24.1

24.2

24.3

24.4

24.5

This represents the amount availed under a running finance facility obtained from M/s. Samba Bank Limited with a limit of Rs.

170 million (2021: Rs. 170 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 1-Month KIBOR plus 2% (2021: 1-Month KIBOR

plus 2%) per annum and is secured by way of first pari-passu hypothetication charge over all present and future stocks and

receivables amounting to Rs. 367 million with 25% margin and first pari-passu charge over the fixed assets (including land and

buildings) amounting to Rs. 227 million with 25% margin. The expiry date of the facility is May 31, 2023.

This represents the amount availed under a running finance facility obtained from M/s. JS Bank Limited with a limit of Rs. 100

million (2021: Rs.100 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 1-Month KIBOR plus 2.25% (2021: 1-Month KIBOR

plus 2.25%) per annum and is secured by way of first pari-passu charge over the Company's fixed assets (including land,

buildings and plant & machinery) amounting to Rs. 134 million with 25% margin over the market value of fixed assets. The

expiry date of the facility is February 28, 2023.

This represents the amount availed under a running finance facility obtained from M/s. Bank Al Falah Limited with a limit of

Rs. 45 million (2021: Rs. 45 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 1-Month KIBOR plus 2.25% (2021: 1-Month

KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum and is secured by way first pari-passu charge over the Company's fixed assets (including land,

buildings and plant & machinery) amounting to Rs. 60 million with 25% margin . The expiry date of the facility is October 31,

2022.

This represents the amount availed under a running finance facility obtained from M/s. Soneri Bank Limited with a limit of Rs.

200 million (2021: Rs. 200 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3-Month KIBOR plus 2.25% (2021: 3-Month KIBOR 

plus 2.25%) per annum and is secured by way of first pari-passu charge over fixed assets (including land, buildings and plant

& machinery) amounting to  Rs. 269 million .The expiry date of the facility is March 31, 2023.

This represents the amount availed under a running finance facility obtained from M/s. Habib Metro Bank Limited with a limit

of Rs. 150 million (2021: Rs. 100 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3-Month KIBOR plus 2.25% (2021: 3-Month

KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum and is secured by way of first charge over industrial land located at plot No. A-293 SITE

Nooriabad amounting to Rs. 200 million. The expiry date of the facility is December 31, 2022.

---------- Rupees ----------
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24.6

24.7

24.8

24.9

24.10

24.11

24.12

24.13

24.14

24.15

25. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
25.1 Contingencies

This represents the amount availed under a running finance facility obtained from M/s. Askari Bank Limited with

a limit of Rs. 50 million (2021: Rs.50 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3-Month KIBOR plus 2%

(2021: 3-Month KIBOR plus 2%) per annum and is secured by way of ranking charge over all present and future

stocks and receivables of the company amounting to Rs. 67 million with 25% margin and first pari-passu charge

over the fixed assets (including land, buildings and plant & machinery) amounting to Rs. 67 million with 25%

margin. The expiry date of the facility is December 31, 2022.

This represents the amount availed under a cash finance facility obtained from M/s. JS Bank Limited with a limit

of Rs. 350 million (2021: Rs. 350 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3-Month KIBOR plus 2.25%

(2021: 3-Month KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum and is secured by way of first exclusive charge over pledge of

stocks, (Raw Cotton, Yarn and Polyester Fibre). The expiry date of the facility is February 28, 2023.

This represents the amount availed under a cash finance facility obtained from M/s. Bank Alfalah Limited with a

limit of Rs. 400 million (2021: Rs. 400 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 1-Month KIBOR plus

2.25% (2021: 1-Month KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum and is secured by way of first exclusive charge over

pledge of stocks (Raw Cotton and Polyester Fibre). The expiry date of the facility is October 31, 2022.

As of the reporting date, the Company had unavailed facilities for short term borrowings available from above

mentioned banks amounting to Rs. 949  million (2021: Rs. 1531 million).

As disclosed last year, in the matter of GIDC levy under act 2011 and GIDC Act 2015 the Company and other

petitioners had been contesting the imposed levy since 2011 and it was in August 13, 2020 that the honorable

Supreme Court of Pakistan upheld the constitutionality of the GIDC Act 2015.

This represents the amount availed under the istisna financing obtained from M/s. Dubai Islamic Bank Limited

with a limit of Rs. 400 million (2021: Nil;). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of relevant KIBOR plus 2%

(2021: Nil) per annum and is secured by way of equitable mortgage over land and building on Plot No. E-11, SITE,

Kotri amounting to Rs. 375 million with 25% margin, first pari passu charge over plant and machinery at Plot No.

E-11, SITE, Kotri amounting to Rs. 158.34 million with 25% margin. The expiry date of the facility is December

31, 2022.

This represents the amount availed under a cash finance facility obtained from M/s. Habib Bank Limited with a

limit of Rs. 250 million (2021: Rs. 250 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 1-Month KIBOR plus

1.85% (2021: 1-Month KIBOR plus 1.85%) per annum and is secured by way of first exclusive charge over

pledge of stocks, (Raw Cotton, Yarn and Polyester Fibre). The expiry date of the facility is March 31, 2023.

This represents the amount availed under the finance against import merchandise within which limit of Note No.

24.8 obtained from M/s. Bank Al Falah Limited with a limit of Rs. 300 million (2021: Rs. 300 million). The facility

carries mark-up at the rate of 1-Month KIBOR plus 2.25% (2021: 1-Month KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum and is 

secured  same as per note No. 24.8 The expiry date of the facility is October 31, 2022.

This represents the amount availed under the finance against imported merchandise obtained from M/s. Habib

Bank Limited with a limit of Rs. 150 million (2021: Rs. 150 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 1-

Month KIBOR plus 1.85% (2021: 1-Month KIBOR plus 1.85%) per annum and is secured by way of first

exclusive charge over pledge of stocks, (Raw Cotton, and Polyester Fibre) . The expiry date of the facility is

March 31, 2023.

This represents the amount availed under a cash finance facility obtained from M/s. Soneri Bank Limited with a

limit of Rs. 375 million (2021: Rs. 375 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3-Month KIBOR plus

2.25% (2021: 3-Month KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum and is secured by way of first exclusive charge over

pledge of stocks, (Raw Cotton, Yarn and Polyester Fibre). The expiry date of the facility is March 31, 2023.

This represents the amount availed under a cash finance facility obtained from M/s. Askari Bank Limited with a

limit of Rs. 170 million (2021: Rs. 170 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3-Month KIBOR plus

2% (2021: 3-Month KIBOR plus 2%) per annum and is secured by way of first exclusive charge over pledge of

stocks, (Raw Cotton, Yarn and Polyester Fibre). The expiry date of the facility is December 31, 2022.
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25.2 Commitments
As of the reporting date, following were the financial commitments:

2022 2021

Note 
- Against raw material and spares 287,758,687      3,036,461,664      
- Against machinery 189,161,772      213,189,190        
Bank guarantees to Excise and Taxation department 92,375,753        64,375,753          
Revolving Letter of credit to SSGC 59,598,010        53,923,889          

26. SALES - net
Revenue from local sales 26.1 3,421,639,574   4,828,686,943      

Revenue from export sales - indirect 26.2 8,371,835,691   3,498,988,192      

Revenue from export sales - direct 1,786,068,974   1,055,223,396      

Wastage sales 26.3 196,323,555      111,462,059        

13,775,867,794 9,494,360,590      

26.1 Revenue from local sales
Gross sales revenue 4,026,135,328   5,671,351,026      

Less: Sales return (19,922,329)      (19,023,242)         

4,006,212,999   5,652,327,784      

Less: Sales tax (584,573,425)    (823,640,841)       

3,421,639,574   4,828,686,943      

26.2 Revenue from export sales - indirect
Gross sales revenue 9,850,016,434   4,099,799,995      

Less: Sales return (47,995,038)      (5,224,670)           

9,802,021,396   4,094,575,325      

Less: Sales tax (1,430,185,705) (595,587,133)       

8,371,835,691   3,498,988,192      

The legal counsel of the Company has given his considered opinion that in view of above two suits the Company

will not be subject to pay any amount of Cess and the Company has therefore in view of the above opinion not

recorded any provision.

---------- Rupees ----------

The Company has also recently filed Suit No. 1682/2021 in the Honorable High Court of Sindh at Karachi along

with several other petitioners seeking a declaration that after the lapse of time period of six months for laying of

the North-South gas pipe line allowed by the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Act has now become in-

operational and dead for all intents and purposes. Consequently, the Company is not liable to pay any GIDC. 

As a result the Company filed Suit 1343 /2020 in the Honorable High Court of Sindh along with several other

companies on the ground that the Company falls within the category of gas consumers, who have neither collected

GIDC from their clients / customers and even not passed on to the customers through addition in the cost of goods

and accordingly, the Company is not liable to pay any amounts pursuant to the above judgment of the Supreme

Court. The Company also raised the issue of retrospective applicability of the Act from 2011. The Honorable

High Court has granted stay to the Company and other petitioners  to the extent of payment of GIDC.

Moreover, in para 37 of the above judgment, the Honorable Supreme Court has held that the Cess under GIDC

Act, 2015 is leviable to those customers of natural gas who on account of their industrial or commercial dealings

pass on its burden to their customer. The Apex Court also restrained the Federal Government from charging

further Cess from the date of the judgment and also imposed certain eventualities on the basis of which this Cess

would become nullified.

The Company along with several other petitioners filed review petitions before the Honorable Supreme Court of

Pakistan seeking a setting aside of the judgment of the Supreme Court and also challenging the applicability of the

GIDC on the Company including the amount to be recovered including its retrospective application from the year

2011. The Hon� ble Supreme Court was pleased to clarify that the question as to the retrospective applicability of

GIDC from 2011 to 2015 would remain open to be decided by the Hon� ble High Courts.

In view of the above, the Company continues to disclose the GIDC amounting to Rs. 234 million (2021: 234

million) as a contingent liability.
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2022 2021

26.3 Wastage sales Note 
Gross sales revenue 231,229,596      130,410,609        

Less: Sales returns (1,336,801)        -                     

229,892,795      130,410,609        

Less: Sales tax (33,569,240)      (18,948,550)         

196,323,555      111,462,059        

27. COST OF SALES
Opening stock of finished goods and waste 420,909,134      894,660,686        

Cost of goods manufactured 27.1 11,669,627,074       7,693,179,960 

12,090,536,208       8,587,840,646 

Closing stock of finished goods and waste (633,249,910)    (420,909,134)       

11,457,286,298 8,166,931,512      

27.1 Cost of goods manufactured
Raw material consumed 27.1.1 9,796,489,741   5,910,542,267      

Conversion costs incurred 27.1.2 1,927,241,239         1,793,693,685 

11,723,730,980       7,704,235,952 

Change in work-in-process inventory:

- Opening stock 61,074,545        50,018,553          

- Closing stock (115,178,451)    (61,074,545)         

(54,103,906)      (11,055,992)         

11,669,627,074 7,693,179,960      

27.1.1 Raw material consumed
Opening 373,846,564      840,779,847        

Add: Purchases 10,042,932,981 5,443,608,984      

10,416,779,545 6,284,388,831      

Closing stock (620,289,804)    (373,846,564)       

9,796,489,741   5,910,542,267      

27.1.2 Conversion costs incurred
Stores and spares consumed 27.1.2.1 171,243,865      146,588,855        
Packing materials consumed 27.1.2.2 153,375,332      134,212,180        
Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1.2.3 684,798,790      607,475,044        
Repair and maintenance 17,841,731        8,762,570            
Insurance 20,050,832        12,653,319          
Fuel and power 27.1.2.4 695,374,441      715,882,507        
Other manufacturing expenses 24,953,716        25,286,902          
Depreciation 5.1.6 159,602,532      142,832,308        

1,927,241,239   1,793,693,685      

27.1.2.1 Stores and spares consumed
Opening stock 83,620,729        75,633,053          
Add: Purchases during the year 209,439,651      159,216,537        

293,060,380      234,849,590        
Closing stock (121,816,515)    (88,260,735)         

171,243,865      146,588,855        

27.1.2.2 Packing materials consumed
Opening 34,223,266        13,157,710          

Add: Purchases 143,770,712      155,277,736        

177,993,978      168,435,446        

Closing stock (24,618,646)      (34,223,266)         

153,375,332      134,212,180        

27.1.2.3 This includes staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 34.10 million (2021: Rs. 27.93 million).

---------- Rupees ----------
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2022 2021

27.1.2.4 Fuel and power Note 
Gas expense 405,887,581      412,112,655        

Electricity expense 280,531,648      296,362,599        

Diesel expense 8,955,212          7,407,253            

695,374,441      715,882,507        

28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and other benefits 28.1 50,516,298        43,807,044          

Directors' remuneration 40 6,000,000          6,000,000            

Travelling and conveyance 7,928,304          7,142,060            

Legal and professional 5,326,592          5,754,668            

Fees and subscription 4,126,063          6,553,583            

Rent, rates and taxes 1,226,054          1,045,112            

Electricity, gas and water 6,241,534          4,672,169            

Repairs and maintenance 8,595,437          6,167,962            

Communication expenses 2,416,958          2,220,059            

Printing and stationery 3,454,541          3,087,015            

Motor vehicle expenses 10,761,022        9,608,041            

Advertisement expenses 392,345             375,010              

Entertainment expenses 2,773,999          3,257,185            

Auditor's remuneration 28.2 1,365,000          1,332,200            

Depreciation 5.1.6 29,282,494        17,888,818          

Donation 750,000             -                     

Miscellaneous expenses 2,053,879          1,447,753            

143,210,520      120,358,679        

28.1 This includes staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 4.03 million (2021: Rs. 5.86 million).

2022 2021

28.2 Auditors' remuneration Note 
Audit fee 997,500             997,500              

Half yearly review 255,000             255,000              

Code of Corporate Governance 52,500               52,500                

Other certifications 50,000               17,200                

Out of pocket expenses 10,000               10,000                

1,365,000          1,332,200            

2022 2021

29. DISTRIBUTION COSTS Note 

Commission on local sales 43.1 97,372,964        58,713,113          

Commission on export sales 43.1 26,425,967        10,911,680          

Export development charges 4,408,621          2,604,243            

Export insurance charges 1,335,934          989,538              

Export selling expenses 6,800,851          6,438,206            

Foreign travelling expense 4,683,000          1,440,230            

Freight and octroi charges 32,909,758        35,477,484          

Ocean freight 25,489,164        10,563,139          

Stamp duty on export sales 3,447,680          1,030,760            

Trailer charges 4,654,430          3,657,328            

Others 29.1 20,940,717        10,991,525          

228,469,086      142,817,246        

29.1 This includes charges in respect of stamp duty on local sales, letter of credit expenses, sales promotion, export and

foreign bank charges and forwarding charges.

---------- Rupees ----------

---------- Rupees ----------

---------- Rupees ----------
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2022 2021

30. OTHER INCOME Note 

Profit on saving accounts 10,642,605        11,612,600          

Profit on Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) 4,707,370          -                    
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 5.1.5 -                    6,014,278            

Exchange gain - net -                    6,602,247            

Bad debts recovered 1,256,949          2,200,000            

Rental Income 10,000               10,000                

16,616,924        26,439,125          

31. OTHER EXPENSES
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 5.1.5 1,328,371          -                     

Realized exchange loss - net 5,986,555          -                     

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 75,823,742        41,894,040          

Workers Welfare Fund 28,813,022        15,919,735          

Provision against slow moving store items 2,250,301          4,640,004            

Provision for expected credit losses 10,993,220        4,635,501            

125,195,211      67,089,280          

32. FINANCE COSTS
Short term financing

- Markup on cash finance 134,831,227      90,985,021          

- Markup on running finance 41,545,704        28,179,980          

- Markup on finance imported merchandise 64,602,411        34,191,654          

- Markup on packing finance 18,883,331        12,090,625          

- Markup on export loan 2,339,547          9,218,838            

262,202,220      174,666,118        

Long term financing
- Markup on Term finance 18,716,438        16,686,688          

- Markup on SBP salary and wages scheme 32.1 3,141,760          3,489,972            

21,858,198        20,176,660          

Interest on Workers' Profit Participation Fund 5,602,611          561,743              

289,663,029      195,404,521        

Bank charges and guarantee commission 153,866,823      65,889,198          

Premium on discounting of export bills 43.1 9,862,801          4,134,290            

453,392,653      265,428,009        

32.1

33. TAXATION
Current 183,471,292      115,541,411        
Prior 6,718,784          762,204              

190,190,076      116,303,615        

Deferred (19,083,695)      3,002,551            

171,106,381      119,306,166        

33.1 Status of income tax assessments

An amortization of government grant amounting to Rs. 3.6 million (2021: Rs. 5.5M) has been netted off from the

finance cost on SBP salary and wages scheme.

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalized up to, and including, the tax year 2021. Tax

returns filed by the Company are deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

unless selected for re-assessment or audit by the taxation authorities. However, at any time during a period of five

years from the date of filing of a return, the taxation authorities may select an income tax return filed by the

Company for the purpose of re-assessment.

---------- Rupees ----------
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2022 2021

Note 
33.2 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting loss before taxation

Profit before taxation    1,384,930,950          758,174,989 

Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2021: 29%)  401,629,975.50     219,870,746.81 

Tax effect of non deductible / other expenses        (29,177,738)             3,913,975 

Tax effect of income apportioned to FTR      (229,164,965)          (72,614,711)

Tax effect of super tax         56,045,014                          - 

Tax effect of adjustment of minimum tax carryforward        (35,104,262)          (32,626,049)

Prior year effect           6,718,784                762,204 

      170,946,809          119,306,166 

34. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
34.1 Basic earnings per share

Profit after taxation 1,213,984,141   638,868,823        

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 21,511,985        20,757,887          

Earnings per share - base 56.43                 30.78                  

34.2 Diluted earnings per share

2022 2021

35. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS Note 

Profit before taxation 1,384,930,950   758,174,989        

Adjustments for non cash and other items:
- Depreciation expense 5.1.6 188,885,026      160,721,126        

- Provision for staff gratuity 18.1.2 38,126,507        33,803,237          

- Provision for gas tariff difference 19,174,729        20,129,774          

- Profit on saving accounts 30 (10,642,605)      (11,612,600)         

- Profit on Term Deposits Receipts (TDRs) 30 (4,707,370)        -                     

- Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 30 -                    (6,014,278)           

- Bad debts recovered (1,256,949)        (2,200,000)           

- Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 31 1,328,371          -                    
- Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund 31 75,823,742        41,894,040          

- Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 31 28,813,022        15,919,735          

- Provision against slow moving store items 31 2,250,301          4,640,004            

- Provision for expected credit losses 31 10,993,220        4,635,501            

- Markup costs 32 289,663,029      195,404,521        

638,451,023      457,321,060        

Operating profit before working capital changes 2,023,381,973   1,215,496,049      

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
- Stores, spares and loose tools (33,244,923)      (33,693,238)         

- Stock in trade (833,925,289)    744,353,061        

- Trade debts (972,897,001)    (239,600,945)       

- Loans and advances (2,929,214)        (59,125,102)         

- Sales tax refundable (31,606,574)      -                     

- Other receivables (13,797,234)      319,461              

(1,888,400,235) 412,253,237        

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
- Trade and other payables 401,152,540      (349,496,918)       

Net cash generated from operations 536,134,278      1,278,252,368      

---------- Rupees ----------

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, since there were no potential ordinary

shares in issue as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021.

---------- Rupees ----------

---------- Rupees ----------

---- Number of shares ----
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2022 2021

37.2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
37.2.1 Financial assets:

Amortized cost
Long term deposits 21,119,188        13,608,488          

Trade debts 2,641,925,967   1,678,765,237      

Investments 112,113,452      82,439,482          

Loans to staff and workers 1,202,664          848,679              

Other receivables 39,831,004        23,906,809          

Cash and bank balances 173,991,392      141,856,960        

2,990,183,667   1,941,425,655      

37.2.2 Financial liabilities:
At amortized cost
Long term financing 488,978,475      401,258,680        

Trade and other payables 1,321,700,343   745,751,780        

Accrued mark-up 64,077,060        32,194,556          

Short term borrowings 1,866,383,279   1,284,020,194      

3,741,139,157   2,463,225,210      

38. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Level 1 : Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market.

Level 2 : Valuation techniques based on observable inputs.

Level 3:

39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirement.

Following is the quantitative analysis of what the Company manages as capital:

Borrowings:
Long term financing 488,978,475      401,258,680        

Loan from related parties 459,305,204      450,650,204        

Loan from director 10,000,000        60,700,000          

958,283,679      912,608,884        

Shareholders' equity:

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 215,119,850      215,119,850        

Share premium 274,197,289      274,197,289        

Unappropriated profits 2,359,779,547   1,184,734,861      

2,849,096,686   1,674,052,000      

Total capital managed by the Company 3,807,380,365   2,586,660,884      

Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation

technique includes inputs not based on observable data.

Presently, items in the financial statements that are carried at fair value are leasehold land, factory building and non-factory building. On a

periodic basis, the Company engages an independent external valuer to carry out a fresh revaluation of these operating fixed assets to ensure 

that their carrying amounts in the financial statements do not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the

end of the reporting period. Such valuation usually involves the use of observable and unobservable inputs; however, the weightage of

observable inputs used is considered as significant. Accordingly, the Company classifies the aforesaid classes of operating fixed assets

within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The management considers that the carrying amount of all other assets and liabilities recognised in the financial statements approximate

their fair value.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the

measurements:

The management's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market

confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The management closely monitors the return on

capital along with the level of distributions to ordinary shareholders. The management seeks to maintain a balance

between higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security

afforded by a sound capital position. 

---------- Rupees ----------

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.
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Reclassified from component Reclassified to component Rupees

Other receivable Prepayments

(Other receivables) (Loans, advances and prepayments) 609,793              

Accrued expenses Provision for gas tariff difference

(Trade and other payables) (Trade and other payables) 112,011,335        

Accrued expenses Withholding income tax payable

(Trade and other payables) (Trade and other payables) 1,000,577            

Accrued expenses Withholding sales tax payable

(Trade and other payables) (Trade and other payables) 229,097              

Commission on local sales Commission on local sales

(Sales -net) (Distribution expenses) 58,713,113          

Commission on export sales Commission on export sales

(Sales -net) (Distribution expenses) 10,911,680          

Premium on discounting of Premium on discounting of

export bills export bills

(Sales -net) (Finance costs) 4,134,290            

43.2 Plant capacity and actual production 2022 2021

Total number of spindles installed 77,592               77,592                

Average numbers of spindle worked 75,316               71,984                

Number of shifts worked per day 3                        3                        

Installed capacity after conversion into 20/s count (kgs.) 28,304,329        26,490,778          

Actual production after conversion into 20/s count (kgs.) 27,373,635        25,569,629          

Capacity utilisation 96.71% 96.52%

43.2.1

43.2.2

43.3 Number of employees

2022 2021

Total employees of the Company at the year end                  1,165                   1,190 

Average employees of the Company during the year                  1,115                   1,140 

43.4 Date Of authorization for issue

43.5 Non-adjusting events after the reporting date

43.6 Level of rounding
Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting dated 06 October 2022 has proposed cash dividend at the

rate of 60% (2021: 30% amounting to Rs. 64.53 million) per share which amounts to Rs. 129.07 million for the

financial and tax year 2022.

Actual production is less than the installed capacity due to planned maintenance shutdown and gap between

market demand and supply.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting

held on 16 October 2022.

---------- (Number) ----------

The total number of employees and average number of employees at year end and during the year respectively

are as follows:

The present normal capacity of the Company's manufacturing facilities is to produce 72,563.77 kgs of yarn per

day. The above disclosed annual production capacity of 28.30 million kgs of yarn is based on 365 operating days a

year.
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Karachi:
Dated: October 06, 2022

Zahid Mazhar
Chief Executive Officer

Omer Bin Zahid
Chief Financial Officer

Omer Bin Zahid
Director
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SHARE HOLDING

                          FROM                             TO

13 Shareholding from         1      to          100 shares 107 0.00                 

16 Shareholding from 101         to          500 shares 7,283 0.03                 

1 Shareholding from 501         to       1000 shares 693 0.00                 

2 Shareholding from 100001   to     105000 shares 209,338 0.97                 

1 Shareholding from 710001   to     715000 shares 712,934 3.31                 

1 Shareholding from 715001   to    720000 shares 715,704 3.33                 

1 Shareholding from 1100001 to   1105000 shares 1,103,399 5.13                 

1 Shareholding from 1745001 to   1750000 shares 1,745,565 8.11                 

1 Shareholding from 2305001 to   2310000 shares 2,306,349 10.72              

1 Shareholding from 3315001 to   3320000 shares 3,316,567 15.42              

1 Shareholding from 3600001 to   3605000 shares 3,604,500 16.76              

1 Shareholding from 3890001 to   3895000 shares 3,893,388 18.10              

1 Shareholding from 3895001 to   3900000 shares 3,896,158 18.11              

41 21,511,985 100

* Note: The slabs representing NIL holding have been omitted.

SR # NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS PERCENTAGE

1 9 66.39              

2 1 16.76              

3 - -

4 Bank / Financial Institution - -

5 Insurance Companies - -

6 31 16.85              

7 - -

41 100.00            

SR # No. of Shares

1

3,316,567      

3,893,388      

3,896,158      

1,745,565      

715,704          

712,934          

500                  

500                  

693                  

2 3,604,500      

3 -                   

4
-                   

5 3,625,476      

6 -                   

7

3,316,567      

3,893,388      

3,896,158      

1,745,565      

1,103,399      

2,306,349      

3,604,500      

8

718,500          

Mr. Zahid Mazhar Gifted shares to his daughter:

MS. SARAH ZAHID 3.34

Nadeem Power Generation (Pvt.) Ltd. 16.76

Trading in the shares of Company during the year by the Director, Chief Executive officer,

Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children.

MS. SARAH ZAHID 10.72

MR. HASSAN BIN ZAHID 18.11

MRS. NAILA ZAHID 8.11

MST. RAFIA SULTANA 5.13

Shareholders holding 5% or more

MR. ZAHID MAZHAR 15.42

MR. OMER BIN ZAHID 18.10

Banks, development financial institutions, non banking finance institutions

and Insurance companies 0.00

Individual shareholders 16.85

Joint stock companies 0.00

MR. NADEEM AHMED 0.00

Associated companies undertakings and related parties 16.76

NIT & ICP 0.00

MRS. SHAFIA HASSAN 3.31

MR. NOOR MUHAMMAD 0.00

MR. WAQAR HASSAN SIDDIQUI 0.00

MR. HASSAN BIN ZAHID 18.11

MRS. NAILA ZAHID 8.11

MRS. ANAM OMER 3.33

DIRECTORS AND THEIR SPOUSES

MR. ZAHID MAZHAR 15.42

MR. OMER BIN ZAHID 18.10

21,511,985

Shareholder Category Percentage

CEO, DIRECTORS AND THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDREN

-

-

General Public / Individuals 3,625,476

Joint Stock Companies -

Directors, Chief Executive Officer their 

Spouse and minor children
14,282,009

Associated Companies, undertaking 

and related parties
3,604,500

NIT & ICP -

NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

NUMBERS OF 

SHAREHOLDERS
TOTAL SHARES HELD

PERCENTAGE

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS SHARES HELD
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